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Project The Falls on Refugee Road Addendum Number 2

Project Number 23446 Date 06/27/2025

To All Bidders

This addendum contains changes to the requirements of the bidding Documents, Project Manual and Construction Drawings which have been issued to date.
Such changes are to be incorporated into the Construction Documents and shall apply to the work in the same meaning and force as if they had been included
in the original documents. Wherever this Addendum modifies a portion of a paragraph of the Project Manual or a portion of any Drawing, the remainder of the
paragraph or Drawing shall remain in force.

General:

1. Pre bid sign in sheet is attached to this Addendum. See attachments.

Specifications i) 00 01 10 – TABLE OF CONTENTS
Updated as described below.

ii) 05 70 00 – DECORATIVE METALS
Section added to project manual.

iii) 10 14 19 – DIMENSIONAL LETTER SIGNAGE
Section removed from project manual.

Drawings 1) G001 - DRAWING INDEX
i) Added sheet G150, A350A, A350B, A350C, A350D, A351, A423, A444,
ii) Deleted Sheet A931

r
2) G100A – BUILDING A LIFE SAFETY

i) Relocated attic access panels

3) G100B – BUILDING B LIFE SAFETY
i) Relocated attic access panels

4) G100C – BUILDING C LIFE SAFETY
i) Relocated attic access panels

5) G150 – SIGNAGE SCHEDULE
i) Sheet added to set

6) G200 – BUILDING ASSEMBLIES SCHEDULE
i) Deleted demountable glass system schedule

7) G400A – BULDING A – GROSS AREA
i) Revised areas for sprinkler rm

8) G400B – BULDING B – GROSS AREA
i) Revised areas for sprinkler rm

9) A106D- CLUBHOUSE - FLOOR & ROOF PLANS
i) Added Coded note 13
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ii) Added demountable glass partition to the fitness area
iii) Adjusted sizes of column enclosures in fitness rm
iv) Add plumbing chases to fitness rm and leasing

10) A201A – BUILDING A LEVEL 01 & 02 RCP
i) Added rated gyp ceiling G2 to sprinkler rm
ii) Removed vinyl soffit at breezeway

11) A202A – BUILDING A LEVEL 03
i) Relocated attic access panel
ii) Revised breezeway ceiling to vinyl soffit
iii) Added dimensions to balcony vinyl soffit

12) A203B – BUILDING B LEVEL 01 & 02 RCP
i) Added rated gyp ceiling G2 to sprinkler rm
ii) Removed vinyl soffit at breezeway

13) A204B – BUILDING B LEVEL 03
i) Relocated attic access panel
ii) Revised breezeway ceiling to vinyl soffit
iii) Added dimensions to balcony vinyl soffit

14) A205C – BUILDING A LEVEL 01, 02 & 03 RCP
i) Added rated gyp ceiling G2 to sprinkler rm
ii) Removed vinyl soffit at level 01/02 breezeway
iii) Relocated attic access panel
iv) Revised level 03 breezeway ceiling to vinyl soffit
v) Added dimensions to level 03 balcony vinyl soffit

15) A206D - CLUBHOUSE - LEVEL 01 & 02 RCP
i) Updated ceiling and lights at leasing, restroom and corridor areas.
ii) Added information regarding opening height in clubroom opening.
iii) Revised fitness room ceiling for increased column enclosure

16) A310A – BUILDING A ELEVATIONS
i) Revised note for alternate to direct to A350

17) A310B – BUILDING B ELEVATIONS
i) Revised note for alternate to direct to A350

18) A310C – BUILDING C ELEVATIONS
i) Revised note for alternate to direct to A350

19) A310D – CLUBHOUSE ELEVATIONS
i) Revised note for alternate to direct to A350

20) A350A – ALTERNATE BUILDING A ELEVATIONS
i) Added sheet to set
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21) A350B – ALTERNATE BUILDING B ELEVATIONS
i) Added sheet to set

22) A350C – ALTERNATE BUILDING C ELEVATIONS
i) Added sheet to set

23) A350D – ALTERNATE CLUBHOUSE ELEVATIONS
i) Added sheet to set

24) A351 – ALTERNATE DETAILS
i) Added sheet to set

25) A422 – WALL SECTIONS – CLUBHOUSE
i) Updated keynote for simulated wood trim in detail #2

26) A423 – WALL SECTIONS – CLUBHOUSE
i) Added the sheet and detail.

27) A440 - EXTERIOR DETAILS – SECTION
i) Updated detail key notes as clouded.

28) A441 - EXTERIOR DETAILS – SECTION
i) Updated detail key notes as clouded.

29) A442 - EXTERIOR DETAILS
i) Updated detail key notes as clouded.

30) A443 - EXTERIOR DETAILS
i) Updated detail key notes as clouded.
ii) Added detail as clouded.

31) A444 – EXTERIOR DETAILS
i) Added sheet to set

32) A502 – ENLARGED UNIT PLANS - 2 BED
i) Kitchen island shifted as clouded.

33) A509 - ENLARGED UNIT PLANS – CLUBHOUSE
i) Kitchen island shifted as clouded.

34) A513 - ENLARGED PLANS, ELEVATIONS & CASEWORK DETAILS – CLUBHOUSE
i) Added demountable glass in Elevation 5.

35) A610 – STAIR & RAILING DETAILS
i) Removed vinyl soffit below joists

36) A700 – DOOR & WINDOW SCHEDULE
i) Revised hardware sets as clouded
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37) A800A - FINISH SCHEDULE/LEGEND
i) Counters- Quartz – Added 3 cm and countertops.
ii) ST-1 – Added Kitchen unit countertops.
iii) ST-2 – Added lavatory / vanity (Unit bath) countertops.
iv) Deleted rynone cultured marble vanity top.

38) A825D – INTERIOR DETAILS – CLUBHOUSE
i) Sheet added to set

Other Refer to attached Addendum descriptions and attachments provided by Korda Engineering
(Site/Civil), Prater Engineering (MEP), Jezerinac Geers (Structural) and EDGE (Landscape).

Attachments Specifications: : 00 01 10; 05 70 00
Prebid sign in sheet

Drawings: G001, A106D, A206D, A422, A423, A440, A441, A442, A443, A502, A309, A503,
A800A.

Refer to items listed under “Other” above.

RFI’s
1. Sheet TS1 (Original Survey) is referenced on the drawing sheets listed above;

however, sheet TS1 is not included in the drawings provided.

Response: Topographic survey will be included in a future Addendum.

2. Drawing E401-Detail Apartment Telecom Wiring Diagram says that the Cat 6 cable
and the RG6 Coaxial from the flush enclosure in apartment to the telephone outlets
in the apartment unit is by the electrical contractor. Specification Section 270528
1.01.C, states all low voltage cabling, outlet jacks and associated equipment will be
installed by others, unless noted otherwise, during construction prior to closure of
walls and ceilings. Is there communication cabling required by the electrical
contractor for this project? Please clarify the scope of work in all buildings required
by the electrical contractor, which may include data outlets in the clubhouse and
phone lines to sprinkler monitoring panels. Also, please provide 27 00 00
specifications for any and all work required.

Response: The Electrical Contractor will provide cat6 wiring to the data outlets in the
apartment. The detail on sheet E401 has been updated to exclude RG6 Cable. Data
outlets in the clubhouse will have one cat6 cable that will terminate at the telecom
backboard in the electrical room.

3. Will telecom outlets be required in each of the apartment bedrooms? None are
shown in apartment enlarged unit electrical plans at this time, but typically see this
included in these types of projects. Please advise.

Response: Yes, there will be 1 telecom outlet in each bedroom, and two in each living
room, one of which will be for the wireless router at 72”.
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4. Hardware manufacturers listed in the specifications call for Sargent mortise locks,
Von Duprin or Sargent exit devices and LCN closers. Again, we usually see grade 2
commercial hardware for common areas and residential grade hardware for the unit
interiors.

Response: Price Grade 1 hardware as indicated.

5. Grading Plans Missing Elevations

Response: Addressed in addendum #2.

6. Please confirm is a performance bond is required. If required, will they be phased
based on initial early release award and the full contract amount at time of the GMP
execution. For clarity, the contractor will only be required to bond the contract
amount being issued at each phase, opposed to the anticipated budget from the
time of award?

Response: Performance bond is not required.

7. Please confirming anticipated timing of the executed GMP and or Notice to Proceed
with the GMP work.

Response: Anticipated execution of GMP to be prior to NTP. Per RFP Page 1, NTP
expected to be sometime November 2025.

8. Please confirm the 18 months Construction Schedule is based on the Notice to
Proceed with the overall GMP.

Response: Confirmed. NTP to follow executed GMP finalized with awarded GC.

9. Please confirm the entitlements have been completed or will be completed by the
Owner. If Contractor responsibility, please clarify the intended scope of work.

Response: No entitlements will be done by the General Contractor.

10. Please confirm if the drawings have been submitted for permit and/or what the
anticipated timeframe is to receive permit.

Response: Documents have not been submitted for permit at this time. It is anticipated
that permits will be submitted in late August 2025.

11. Please provide a project specific copy of the Census Docs 500 Contract Form.

Response: Will be distributed with future addendum.
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12. During the Pre-Proposal conference it was noted that AEP is still working to locate
the transformer, please provide anticipated location.

Response: Transformer locations will be provided in the future Addendum.

13. Please confirm if the North and South Detention center have to be installed as part
of the temporary stormwater management during the actual construction.

Response: They are part of SWPPP as indicated on the Erosion Control Plans.

14. Please verify Zip-Wall can be installed at the exterior ILO Tyvek.

Response: The zip wall system has the air barrier incorporated into it with taped joints
per the manufacturer’s guidelines. The manufactured stone areas call out an additional
water resistive drainage mat over the zip system.

15. Foundation Note #2 on S101-A states to “Replace Weakened Soil with lean concrete
or Flowable Fill”. Does CMHA want to carry an allowance for this, provided the
weakened soil is not caused by the contractor?

Response: No allowance.

16. Refer to details 4 and 5 on S300 (as example); can Contractor install the concrete
footer and stem wall monolithically?

Response: YES

17. Specification 051200 references Structural Steel but there are no members shown
on the drawings, please clarify if required and provide updated drawings details if so.

Response: There is no structural steel in this project and the specification section can be
removed.

18. Please confirm Owner is providing Commissioning Agent, 3rd Party Material
Inspections and 3rd Party Building Code Inspections.

Response: CMHA will hire a third party firm to provide construction material testing
and inspection services required by the City of Columbus. It is our understanding that
commissioning is not required for dwelling units.

19. Sheet A202A shows Wood Grain pattern at Balcony Ceiling that does not correlate to
the Legend, please confirm WD4 Wood Ceiling finish at these location. Same for
A204B, A205C.

Response: Wood grain pattern has been revised. Balcony ceiling revised to a vinyl
system
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20. Please confirm what Plastic Fabrications (066000) are; refer to details 1, 2, 4, 6 and
12 on sheet A441 for an example of this.

Response: This item is the simulated wood trim 06 65 00 rather than the 06 60 00
noted. Addressed in Addendum #2.

21. Please confirm gypcrete is required, no details provided?

Response: Gypcrete shall not be a part of the construction documents. Please notify the
design team of a location gypcrete was referenced.

22. Confirm if Davis-Bacon wage scale is required and what Act governs.

Response: Answered in Addendum #1. Davis Bacon not applicable.

23. Confirm if MBE + FBE requirements are needed

Response: Requirements for MBE or Section 3 participation are only Goals. GC is to
provide good faith effort to help CMHA meet goals.

24. Please clarify the extent of felled trees to be removed as well as underbrush. Will this
be done prior to us coming to the site or is the clearing and removal of felled trees
our responsibility?

Response: Contractor is responsible for the removal of felled trees.

25. While trying to piece together the 5 match line sections of the grading/storm plans,
I notice a slight problem. Sheet 4/24 is the overall site grading / storm plan. Sheet
6/24 is the upper right section and sheet 8/24 is the lower right section. Neither of
these 2 sheets align with the overall plan, sheet 4/24, yet they do align with the
sections immediately to their left respectively. Sheet 6/24 aligns with 5/24 and sheet
8/24 aligns with 7/24.

Please clarify how to align the sheets. If a cad file is available, that would be the best
solution

Response: This was responded as part of Addendum #1. CAD file was provided as part of
Addendum #1.

26. There has been reference made to an existing site survey, sheet TS-1. I do not see it
within the drawings posted. Please provide the existing site survey if possible. Thank
you

Response: Existing survey to be provided in a future Addendum.

27. The fixture schedule calls out for a P2 and P3, but there is no fixture shown on the
lighting schedule. Please advise as to what fixture to use, or if I should carry a
specific allowance for that type.
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Response: Fixtures P2 and P3 have been added to the fixture schedule and will be
provided in the next addendum.

28. Floor details showing only one floor type at the moment. The Drawings have one for
LVP1 but no other ones. They all say TBD. Please clarify

Response: This was addressed as part of Addendum #1.

29. Please clarify the shingle and impact rating. I see lots of bids that specs out the
premium shingles and Class IV rating, but they were looking at the everyday
shingles.

Response: Basis of design is “Dimensional”. Substitutions will be considered.

30. Please confirm Owner will be responsible for the cost of all incoming utility
permanent services or indicate an allowance amount to carry in the proposal.

Response: All costs will be paid or reimbursed by the Owner. CMHA is working on this
and will establish Allowances in final addendum

31. Are there any allowances CMHA wants the contractor to carry in the GMP?

Response: CMHA is working on this and will establish Allowances in final addendum.

32. There is a ADA Interior Sign TYPE Drawing A931 but I do not see a schedule.
Sometimes not all types are relevant as well. Also, there is a Sign Type P denoting
plaque, but no info is given if applicable.

Response: See legend on G150. Signage location and types are indicated on Life safety
plans.

33. There is a Spec, Section 101419 for Cast Aluminum Letters. Where are they shown?

Response: Not in the project currently. Specs updated in addendum #2.

34. The details for the railings are incomplete, please confirm if the railings for the Stair
Structures and Apartment Balconies are to be Carbon Steel or Aluminum. Detail
10/A610 appears to depict aluminum railings, and the Pool railings are to be
Aluminum by Ameristar, but there are no details showing steel sizes for the Railings
on A610.
What is the required finish for the railings?

Response: A610 updated in Addendum #2 to indicate railing materials. Refer to
specification Section 05 70 00 issued with this Addendum #2 for additional information.
Apartment balconies will have aluminum railings – Series 9P Picket Railing.

35. It’s not clear if the Keso or Primus cylinder cores are required. Can you please verify if
we still need those or if we can use a standard Yale SFIC core?
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Response: Approved Alternates of SFIC can be used in lieu of specified cores if approval
through substitution request is utilized during bidding.

36. Is Patterson Pools the contractor we have to use for the pool install?

Response: No. The specification is written to allow for other pool contractors to be able
to bid. Patterson Pools will be submitting the pool permit to ODH.

37. On FP drawings FP101A, FP103-B & FP105-C show 2 risers for each Building. One for
the 1st level and one for levels 2 & 3. Can we have just one riser for the entire
Building? This will save material for the added riser and added main piping. The
branchline piping will still rise up in the walls but using sidewalls throughout the
entire building or stacks.

Response: One riser per building is acceptable. The drawings have been updated and
included in Addendum #2. The sprinkler layout design is the responsibility of the Fire
Protection Contractor. The Architect shall approve the general locations of the sprinkler
heads. Sprinkler supply riser piping shall not be located in exterior or breezeway wall
structures.

38. The FP plans also show dropping down underground twice and rising back up twice
to avoid crossing the breezeways. Can there be two insulated enclosures above the
1st floor ceilings where the piping will cross to protect the wet piping in those areas?

Response: Insulated enclosures at the ceiling are not acceptable.

39. Do you know where I can get a list of General Contractors that might be bidding so I
can get them my quote?

Response: Sign in sheet is attached in Addendum #2.

40. There is a Spec Section 101419 for Dimensional Lettering. Could not find any. Are
there any?

Response: Not in the project currently. Specs updated in addendum #2.



 
 

 
 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 2

Owner: Columbus Metropolitan Housing Authority

Project: The Falls on Refugee Road
3355 Refugee Road
Columbus, OH 43232

AUTOCAD

1. CAD base with proposed contours.

DRAWINGS

1. SHEET C204 – OVERALL STORM SEWER & GRADING PLAN
A. ADD general note 19.

2. SHEET C205 – STORM SEWER & GRADING PLAN
A. REVISE proposed contours.
B. ADD spot grades and multileaders for detailed grading.
C. ADD downspouts and roof drains with associated cleanouts.

3. SHEET C206 – STORM SEWER & GRADING PLAN
A. REVISE proposed contours.
B. ADD spot grades and multileaders for detailed grading.
C. ADD downspouts and roof drains with associated cleanouts.

4. SHEET C207 – STORM SEWER & GRADING PLAN
A. REVISE proposed contours.
B. ADD spot grades and multileaders for detailed grading.
C. ADD downspouts and roof drains with associated cleanouts.



 
 

 
 
 

5. SHEET C208 – STORM SEWER & GRADING PLAN
A. REVISE proposed contours.
B. ADD spot grades and multileaders for detailed grading.
C. ADD downspouts and roof drains with associated cleanouts.

6. SHEET C209 – STORM SEWER & GRADING PLAN
A. REVISE proposed contours.
B. ADD spot grades and multileaders for detailed grading.
C. ADD downspouts and roof drains with associated cleanouts.

7. SHEET C210 – STORM SEWER DETAILS
A. REVISE detail G, drain basin.
B. REVISE detail A, Outlet Control Structure 11.
C. REVISE detail B, Outlet Control Structure 5.

8. SHEET C211 – STORM SEWER DETAILS
A. REVISE detail A, Outlet Control Structure 1.
B. REVISE detail B, South Basin elevations.

9. SHEET C214 – STORM SEWER PROFILES
A. ADD roof drain inverts to structure 6, 16, and 19 in profile.

10. SHEET C215 – STORM SEWER PROFILES
A. ADD roof drain inverts to structures 20, 29, 30, and 31 in profile.

11. SHEET C216 – STORM SEWER PROFILES
A. ADD roof drain inverts to structures 32, 41, and 45 in profile.
B. ADD compacted fill area per item 203.

11. SHEET C217 – OVERALL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN
A. REVISE construction entrance and concrete washout location.



 
 

 
 
 

12. SHEET C218 – EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN
A. ADD downspouts and roof drains with associated cleanouts.

13. SHEET C219 – EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN
A. ADD downspouts and roof drains with associated cleanouts.
B. REVISE construction entrance and concrete washout location.

14. SHEET C220 – EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN
A. ADD downspouts and roof drains with associated cleanouts
B. REVISE construction entrance and concrete washout location.

15. SHEET C221 – EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN
A. ADD downspouts and roof drains with associated cleanouts.
B. REVISE construction entrance and concrete washout location.

16. SHEET C222 – EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN
A. ADD downspouts and roof drains with associated cleanouts
B. REVISE construction entrance and concrete washout location.

17. SHEET C305 – SANITARY PROFILES
A. ADD anti infiltration barrier between sanitary and storm sewer crossings.
B. ADD roof drain crossings.

18. SHEET C306 – SANITARY DETAILS
A. ADD detail A, Anti-Infiltration & Inflow Barrier.

19. SHEET C407 – WATER SERVICE PLAN & PROFILE
A. ADD 4” domestic water line profile
B. ADD roof drain crossings.

20. SHEET C408 – UTILITY NOTES & DETAILS
A. REVISE sheet number.



 
 

 
 
 

21. SHEET C409 – UTILITY DETAILS
A. REVISE sheet number.

22. SHEET C410 – WATER SERVICE PLAN & PROFILE
A. ADD roof drain crossings.
B. REVISE sheet number.

23. SHEET C411 – WATER SERVICE PLAN & PROFILE
A. ADD roof drain crossings.
B. REVISE sheet number.

24. SHEET C412 – WATER SERVICE PLAN & PROFILE
A. REVISE sheet number.
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Date  June 24, 2025 

Project Title  The Falls on Refugee Road 
 

To  All Plan Holders 

Purpose  Modify the Construction Documents 

Distribution   

 
This Addendum supplements and amends the original Plans and Specifications and shall be taken into account 
in preparing proposals and shall become a part of the contract documents. 
 
 
DRAWING REVISIONS: 

 
1. L1.01 – LANDSCAPE PLAN – OVERALL SITE 

a. Add sign location along Refugee with associated landscaping. Quantities specified on
L1.02. 

b. Updated entry drive revision along Refugee. Adjust seed coverage amount.  
 

2. L1.02 – LANDSCAPE PLAN – NORTH 
a. Add sign location along Refugee with associated landscaping. 
b. Updated entry drive revision along Refugee. Adjust seed coverage amount. 
c. Adjusted plant layout and quantities for transformer locations.  

 
3. L1.03 – LANDSCAPE PLAN – SOUTH 

a. Adjusted plant layout and quantities for transformer locations.  
 

4. L1.04 – LANDSCAPE DETAILS 
a. Adjusted plant quantities on plant schedule.  

 
5. L1.05 – SITE DETAILS  

a. Added monument sign detail #7. Detail provided for design intent only as noted.  
 

SPECIFICATION REVISIONS: 
 
No changes

 
 
 



Jezerinac Geers & Associates, Inc.
5640 Frantz Road, Dublin, OH 43017
614.766.0066
www.jgaeng.com

CMHA Refugee Road June 25, 2025
JGA Project 24.35.061

Addendum 2 Narrative
Refer to the attached updated sheets and descriptions below.

S101-A, S103-B, S105-C, S107-D, S109-G – Foundation Plan (Buildings A, B, C, D, G1 & G2)
1) Updated footing schedule.

S102-A, S104-B, S106-C – Roof Framing Plan (Buildings A, B & C)
1) Updated roof framing notes.

S107-D – 2nd Floor Framing Plan (Building D)
1) Revised west stairs.
2) Added the stair landing framing plan for west stairs.
3) Updated the wood beam schedule.
4) Added details 1&2/S311 for west stairs.

S109-G – Foundation Plan (Garage G1/G2)
1) Revised detail 11 to include 11A and 11B. Updated detail 11 to reflect concrete

curb in the garages. Revised detail to include 11A and 11B.

S300 – Foundation Details
1) Updated detail 11 to reflect concrete curb in the garages. Revised detail to include

11A and 11B.

S311 – Framing Details
1) Added sheet.
2) Added details 1&2/S311.

End of Narrative.



 

Refugee Rd Addendum 2 Narrative

Electrical
1. E100 – Electrical site plan

a. Corrected coded notes.
b. Labeled Garages.
c. Added lighting bollard detail.
d. Revised quazite box size for future ev chargers.
e. Revised lighting control note.
f. Added ground mounted floodlight detail.
g. Added floodlight for exterior signs.
h. Transformer location moved.
i. Ev charger detail note revised.

2. E101 – Electrical Clubhouse Plan
a. Added receptacle near pool per NEC 680.22 requirement.

3. E101-A, E102-A, E103-B, E104-B, E105-C, E106-C – Overall building plans
a. Added unit tags.
b. Added a lighting contactor in equipment room for breezeway lighting and

exterior lighting.
c. Adjusted coded notes.

4. E107-D – Clubhouse
a. Added unit tags.
b. Added a lighting contactor in mechanical room.
c. Adjusted note for OAF connection.
d. Changed hardwired RCP-1 to a receptacle.
e. Moved location of exit sign and switches for community room.
f. Moved receptacle and lighting in new restroom.
g. Added receptacle and data outlet for copiers.
h. Removed data outlet in conference room.
i. Telecom backboard added to electrical room.

5. E108 – Garages
a. Corrected fixtures fromW4’s to W3’s.

6. E200, E201, E202 – Electrical Unit plans
a. Added general note for dishwashers.
b. Added switch and power for kitchen exhaust fans.

7. E300, E301 – Electrical One-line Diagrams



 

 
a. Adjusted grounding and wire sizes.
b. Added fuses to clubhouse service disconnect.
c. Revised one-line for single transformers for each building.

8. E302 – Electrical schedules
a. Panel schedules updated per addendum changes.

9. E400 – Electrical details
a. Added fixture FL1.

10. E401 – Electrical details
a. Edited apartment telecom wiring diagram.
b. Added exterior lighting control diagram.
c. Added clubhouse exterior lighting control diagram.
d. Removed sprinkler control panel detail.
e. Added telecom backboard ground bar detail.

HVAC
1. H100 –HVAC site plan

a. Revised outdoor unit layout at the clubhouse.
2. H101-A – Building A – Level 01 & 02

a. Updated outdoor unit tags to include alternate orientation of building A.
b. Updated indoor unit tags to include alternate orientation of building A.

3. H102-A – Building A – Level 03
a. Updated indoor unit tags to include alternate orientation of building A.

4. H103-B – Building B – Level 01 & 02
a. Updated outdoor unit AH tags.
b. Updated indoor unit AH tags.

5. H104-B – Building B Level 03
a. Updated indoor unit AH tags.

6. H105-C – Building C – Level 01 & 02
a. Updated outdoor unit AH tags.
b. Updated indoor unit AH tags.

7. H106-C – Building C Level 03
a. Updated indoor unit tags.

8. H107-D – Building D Level 01 & 02
a. Updated outdoor unit tags.
b. Updated indoor unit tags on level 02.
c. Added coded notes for refrigerant piping.
d. Revised duct size for duct above the restrooms.
e. Revised duct size above fitness center.
f. Revised duct size for branch duct serving D106 Marketing.
g. Added duct sizes and revised return air device in D101 Lobby.

9. H-200 – Enlarged Unit HVAC Plans



 

 
a. Revised duct layouts for all enlarged units plans.
b. Added kitchen exhaust fans (EF-K).
c. Added coded note regarding dryer equivalent duct length label.

10. H-201 – Enlarged Unit HVAC Plans
a. Revised duct layouts for all enlarged units plans.
b. Added kitchen exhaust fans (EF-K).
c. Removed coded notes 14 & 15.

11. H-202 – Enlarged Unit HVAC Plans
a. Revised duct layouts for all enlarged units plans.
b. Added kitchen exhaust fans (EF-K).
c. Removed coded notes 14 & 15.

12. H-300 –HVAC Schedules
a. Updated information for Split System Heat Pump Schedule.
b. Removed notes from HVAC Notes.
c. Added missing Equipment Notes regarding intake/exhaust terminals and

destratification fan in building D gallery.
d. Removed air device type C from Air Terminal Schedule.
e. Updated dryer equivalent lengths in the Dryer Equivalent Lengths

Calculations.
f. Revised remarks for EF-K.

13. H-301 –HVAC Details
a. Removed pipe curb detail.
b. Removed dryer exhaust detail for top floor rough-in.
c. Added outdoor unit/refrigeration piping detail.

Fire Protection
14. FP101-A – Building A Fire Protection Plans

a. Revised fire protection layout for one system riser.
b. Revised Coded Notes 6, 7, 8, & 9.

15. FP103-B – Building B Fire Protection Plans
a. Revised fire protection layout for one system riser.
b. Revised Coded Notes 6, 7, 8, & 9.

16. FP105-C – Building C Fire Protection Plans
1. Revised fire protection layout for one system riser.
2. Revised Coded Notes 9, 7, 8, & 9.

17. FP106-D – Building D Fire Protection Plans
1. Revised Level 01 fire protection layout due to plan updates.
2. Revised Coded Notes.

18. FP-201 – Fire Protection Enlarged Plans & Details



 

 
1. Revised Buildings A, B, & C Enlarged Sprinkler Riser Closet Plan for one

system riser.
2. Revised Buildings A, B, & C Fire Water Service Riser Diagram for one

system riser.
3. Revised Coded Note 4.

19. FP-301 – Fire Protection Notes, Schedules & Details
a. Revised electric voltage for the Electric Alarm Bell.

Plumbing
20. P106-D – Building D Level 01 & 02 Plumbing Plans

1. Revised Level 01 Plumbing Sanitary Plan due to plan updates.
21. P107-D

a. Revised Level 01 Plumbing Supply Plan due to plan updates.
b. Revised Enlarged Level 01 Plumbing Supply Plan due to plan updates.
c. Revised Coded Note 26.
d. Added Coded Notes 29 & 30.

22. P-301 – Plumbing Notes, Schedules & Legends
1. Revised specifications for fixtures L1 & L2 in Plumbing Equipment

Schedule.
2. Revised specification for RCP-1 in Plumbing Equipment Schedule.
3. Revised specification for BV-1 in Plumbing Equipment Schedule.

23. P-401 – Plumbing Details
a. Revised EWH-2 Water Heater Piping Diagram.
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SECTION 05 70 00
DECORATIVE METALS

PART 1 GENERAL
1.01 WORK INCLUDED

A. Provide all miscellaneous ornamental metal items specified hereunder, including all design,
materials, fabrication, fastenings and accessories required for finished installations, where
indicated on drawings or otherwise necessary for completion of the project. Work includes, but
is not limited to, the following:
1. Decorative handrail and railing systems, both interior and exterior.

1.02 RELATED SECTIONS
A. Stair and Railing: Section 05 50 00.
B. Metal Fabrications: Section 05 50 00.

1.03 REFERENCE STANDARDS
A. ASTM B221 - Standard Specification for Aluminum and Aluminum-Alloy Extruded Bars, Rods,

Wire, Profiles, and Tubes; 2021.
B. ASTM D2247 - Standard Practice for Testing Water Resistance of Coatings in 100 % Relative

Humidity; 2015 (Reapproved 2020).
C. ASTM D3359 - Standard Test Methods for Rating Adhesion by Tape Test; 2023.
D. ASTM D3363 - Standard Test Method for Film Hardness by Pencil Test; 2022.
E. ASTM A167 - Stainless and Heat Resisting Chromium-Nickel Steel Plate, Sheet and Strip.
F. Aluminum Association

1. Aluminum Standards and Data.
2. Designation System for Aluminum Finishes.

a. Standards for Anodic Finishes.
G. National Association of Architectural Metal Manufacturers.
H. American Institute of Steel Construction (AISC): "Manual of Steel Construction".
I. AWI: Architectural Woodwork Institute.

1. Section 800: Stairwork and Handrails.
2. NOMMA: National Ornamental and Miscellaneous Metals Association.

1.04 SUBMITTALS
A. Product Data: Manufacturer's literature may be submitted for standard proprietary products in

lieu of shop drawings. Data to fully explain product indicating materials, sizes and finishes, and
installation procedures.

B. Samples: Samples to be reviewed for color, texture and reflectivity and general appearance.
Compliance with all other requirements is the responsibility of the Contractor.
1. Finish: Submit for approval minimum 6" x 6" or 12" length of each required metal finish.
2. Weld: Submit samples of welded joint showing quality of work. Samples to be of same

form, alloy, temper and hardness to be used in the work.
3. Sample: Submit a 2'-0" long sample of completed rail system.

C. Shop Drawings: Show details of fabrication and installation. Indicate materials, alloys and
tempers, thicknesses of materials, gages, sizes, dimensions, methods of joining and fastening,
welds, finishes, details of reinforcement and embedment, attachments, anchorages,
miscellaneous metal items incidental to basic fabrication shown, provisions for work of other
trades and other pertinent information as requested by the Architect.

D. Maintenance Instructions: Submit manufacturers'/fabricators' recommendations for
maintenance of exposed finishes.
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E. Certifications: Submit certifications that products comply with applicable design loadings.
Include structural analysis data sealed and signed professional engineer responsible for their
preparation.

F. Welder Certifications: Qualify welding process and welders in accordance AWS Codes
referenced herein.
1. Certify that each welder has successfully passed AWS qualification tests for the welding

processing involved and, if pertinent, has undergone recertification.
1.05 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Fabricator Qualifications: Fabricator must have a minimum of 5 years experience and be
regularly engaged in type of work specified. Must employ only skilled personnel using proper
equipment to produce the work in high quality. Must be approved by Architect.

B. Installer Qualifications: Fabricator of products.
C. Single Source Responsibility: Stairs, handrails and railing systems shall be designed, fabricated

and installed by the same source.
D. Engineering Responsibility: Stair engineering to be performed by a qualified professional

engineer legally authorized to practice in the State of [Ohio], experienced in this type of work.
PART 2 PRODUCTS
2.01 MATERIALS

A. Provide materials which have been selected for their surface flatness, smoothness and freedom
from surface blemishes where exposed to view in the finished unit. Exposed-to-view surfaces
which exhibit pitting, seam marks, roller marks, "oil-canning", stains, discolorations or other
imperfections on finished units will not be acceptable.

B. Aluminum - Material and Description: Provide as detailed or as required to maintain design
intent as indicated on drawings. Aluminum extruded shapes and bent aluminum sheet,
minimum 0.063", unless otherwise indicated or specified, finished after fabrication.
1. Extruded Bar and Tube: ASTM B221 (ASTM B 221M), alloy 6061-T6/T62, Fy = 35 ksi.
2. Extruded Structural Pipe and Tube: ASTM B221 , alloy 6061-T6/T62, Fy = 35 ksi.
3. Plate and Sheet: ASTM B209/B209M, 6061-T6.

C. Fasteners: Provide fasteners of types as required for assembly and installation of fabricated
items. In general, fasteners to be concealed from view. Exposed fasteners, where permitted or
required, to conform to the following:
1. Fasteners to be of basic metal and alloy, matching finished color and texture as metal

being fastened, unless otherwise indicated.
2. Provide Phillips flat head screw/bolts for exposed fasteners.

D. Miscellaneous Materials: Provide all incidental accessory materials, tools, methods and
equipment required for fabrication and installation of metal items as indicated on drawings, and
not furnished by other sections.

2.02 FABRICATION
A. Preliminary: Verify dimensions prior to fabrication.
B. Forming: Form metal items to accurate sizes and configurations as indicated on drawings and

otherwise required for proper installation. Make with all lines straight and angles sharp, clean
and true. Drill, countersink, tap and otherwise prepare items for connections with work of other
trades as required.

C. Fasteners: Make permanent connections with work of other trades, as required. Avoid using
exposed bolts or screws unless specifically indicated or approved.

D. Joints: Construct items with joints milled to a tight, hairline fit. Cope or miter corner joints.
Where exposed to weather, form to exclude water.

E. Welding: Comply with AWS for recommended practices in shop welding.
1. Provide welds behind finished surfaces without distortion or discoloration of exposed side.
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2. Clean exposed welded joints of all welding flux and dress on all exposed and contact
surfaces to match adjacent surfaces.

3. Where welding cannot be concealed behind finished surfaces, finish joints to comply with
NOMMA's "Voluntary Joint Finish Standards" Guideline #1, Joint Finish #1; no evidence of
a welded joint.

F. Cut, reinforce, drill and tap miscellaneous metal as indicated to receive hardware, screws, and
similar items. Countersunk screw holes to set screw heads flush, unless indicated otherwise.

2.03 ASSEMBLIES
A. Aluminum Railings

1. Basis of Design: Multi-Family Housing Railing, Columns and Fence products by
SUPERIOR ALUMINUM PRODUCTS.

2. Design to meet NAAMM standards and requirements of applicable codes, but not less
than 200 lbs. applied at any point in any direction.

3. Shop fabricated with minimum field splicing allowed.
a. All construction welded per AWS.
b. Welds, where shown, to be continuous. Grind and add weld as required to provide

uniform and smooth transition between pieces. Buff, polish and blend as required to
match finish of railing.

4. Quality of Welds: NOMMA Guideline #1, Joint Finish #1.
5. Finish: As specified under Shop Finish herein.

2.04 SHOP FINISHES
A. Protect mechanical finishes on exposed surfaces from damage by application of strippable,

temporary protective covering prior to shipment.
B. Appearance of Finished Work: Variations in appearance of abutting or adjacent pieces are not

acceptable if they are noticeable variations in the same piece. Variations in appearance of
other components are acceptable, subject to Architect's approval.

C. Aluminum Surfaces
1. Shop paint aluminum surfaces with baked-on organic polymer thermosetting powder

coating applied over conversion coating.
2. Finish Coating Properties

a. Hardness: H or better in accordance with ASTM D3363.
b. Crosshatch Adhesion: In accordance with ASTM D3359.
c. Salt Spray Resistance: 1,000 hours, tested in accordance with ASTM D117.
d. Humidity Resistance: 1,000 hours tested in accordance with ASTM D2247.
e. Detergent Immersion: 1,000 hours tested in accordance with ASTM D2248.

3. Colors: As selected by Architect.
PART 3 EXECUTION
3.01 INSTALLATION

A. Set stair, handrail and railing work accurately as measured from established building lines and
levels, plumb and in true alignment with previously completed work. Brace temporarily or
anchor securely in formwork where work is to be built into concrete, masonry or similar
construction.

B. Anchor securely in place in the manner shown, using concealed anchorage wherever possible.
C. Fit mechanical joints together accurately to form tight joints and uniform reveals and spaces for

joint fillers and sealants. Restore any finishes that have been damaged by shipment and
installation.

D. Do not cut or abrade finishes which cannot be completely restored in the field, including special
finishes. Return units with special finishes that cannot be field restored to the shop for required
alterations, followed by complete refinishing.
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E. Remove protective coverings when there is no longer any danger of damage to the railing work
from other work yet to be performed in the same location. Restore protective coverings which
have been removed or damaged during shipment or installation of the work, if such other work
is yet to be performed.

END OF SECTION 05 70 00
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